
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, June 7th, 2011.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member  



Robert Foley, Board Member 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member
Mr. Peter Daly, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney

 



Mr. Ed Vergano, Director Department of Technical Services 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  




John Potts, representing CAC




Tyler Davis, CAC, Intern



*



*



*

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF MAY 3, 2011
So moved.
Seconded. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I’m submitting some corrections.

With all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*

CORRESPONDENCE
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would like to introduce to the public here and viewing public, Tyler Davis who is an intern working with the CAC this summer.  He is a summer intern.  He’s in a college in Rhode Island, I forgot the name of the college – Bryant University.  You will see him if you’re in and out of here you will see him – he’s pretty hard to miss with all that red hair.  He’s going to be working with CAC and he will be sitting in on meetings here, at our work session and our regular meetings right?  So, that’s Tyler Davis.
PB 23-08    a.
Letter dated May 16, 2011 from John Alfonzetti, P.E. requesting the 1st six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Mountain View Estates Subdivision located at the end of Joseph Wallace Drive.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution #11-11 please.
Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anybody got any issues with this Resolution?

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 21-05    b.
Letter dated May 18, 2011 from Jesse Stackhouse and John DeIulio requesting the 4th ninety-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Hillside Estates subdivision located on Locust Avenue.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we would adopt Resolution 12-11.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 7-10      c.
Letter dated May 20, 2011 from William Zutt, Esq. requesting the 2nd ninety-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Valeria Subdivision located on Furnace Dock Road.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion we adopt Resolution 13-11.
Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question on the Resolution that was handed to us tonight, maybe it’s just mine, here it is.  I have conditions on it.  Are we all squared away on these conditions?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s a later Resolution.  

Mr. John Bernard stated Valeria is twice on the agenda.
Mr. Robert Foley stated this is just a letter credit one.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no, this is just the time extension one.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS 

PB 3-11      a.
Application of Jeff and Helen Mengel for a lot line adjustment between two lots located at 20 Maiden Lane (Section 55.18, Block 1, Lots 14 & 15) as shown on a drawing entitled “Lot Line Adjustment” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. dated April 18, 2011.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution #14-11.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 18-98    b.
Letters dated February 7, 2011 from William Zutt and April 18, 2011 from Thomas Wood, Esq. regarding the Letter of Credit for the Valeria Development located on Furnace Dock Road. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution 15-11.
Seconded.

Mr. William Zutt asked Madame Chair may I be heard briefly?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded you can come in on the question if you’d like.

Mr. William Zutt stated I haven’t seen the latest version so I may not have any comment.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated oh, you haven’t seen it. 

Mr. William Zutt stated I’d still like to comment on it if I could.  It has to do with condition #3 if I may?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we could ask Jeff to read them.  Jeff do you want to read them out the conditions so everybody’s clear on what they are?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked should I read the conditions?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, there are only three here. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated “1) the applicant shall prepare, execute, and record the declaration containing the terms of this Resolution to the satisfaction of the Director of Technical Services and Legal Department.  2) The applicant shall stake in the field the surveyed location for the area permitted for the placement of organic matter, second amendment to conservation easement parcel D and the area known as conservation easement subarea B2.  Complete a site visit with Town officials in the Westchester Land Trust to confirm the location and prepare, execute with the Westchester Land Trust and record the second amendment to conservation easement parcel D within 45 days of the date of this Resolution or the Town shall complete same at applicant’s expense.  3) The minimum amount required letter of credit to be posted will be equal to the 7.8 million dollars as previously approved less the cost of already completed infrastructure work as approved by the Director of Technical Services.”
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re on the question, do you have anything you want to bring up?

Mr. William Zutt responded I had seen the earlier draft of this Resolution and our only issue has to do with condition #3.  We believe that it is possible, though perhaps unlikely, that the cost of completion of project infrastructure may be less than the originally established 7.8 million dollars in lieu of the various changes that the economy has undergone and for that reason I was going to request that this condition not stipulate a minimum amount but simply state that the amount of the final letter of credit may be greater or less than the originally stated 7.8 million.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I was going to make the same point because I’m thinking it’s going to be higher than the 7.8 so I think by not specifying the amount that we should have an amount to be determined by the Department of Technical Services whatever that amount is less whatever the improvements are.

Mr. John Klarl stated I think we said it at the work session.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but it’s not written.

Mr. John Klarl stated I know, you’re right.

Mr. William Zutt stated you said it better than I did.  Thanks.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just to address Mr. Zutt’s comment, typically, as the project progresses, involving the construction the Town never adjusts the amount that we’re holding, the security, to adjust for labor and material cost.  I don’t see why we should do that in this situation.  In other words, if you had been proceeding with the project at the 7.8 million three years from now we’d have the project and we would give you a credit for half that value but we would not take into consideration any adjustments in material and labor cost during that period on the remaining work.
Mr. William Zutt stated if I understand correctly credit would be given for completed work…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated based on the original schedule.

Mr. William Zutt stated but between now and 2014 conceivably the cost of completion may actually be less than was the original projection of 7.8 million and we just would like it to be a two way street, that’s all.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s true for any project that’s in construction.  The project, the material and cost could be less as the project progresses from year to year, you agree with that?
Mr. William Zutt responded but as the Resolution is written now Ed, it states that the minimum won’t be 7.8 million.  We just believe there shouldn’t be a minimum, that’s all.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated because we started with the 7.8.

Mr. William Zutt responded right, back in ’07.
Mr. John Bernard stated Mr. Zutt, the approvals were granted in a particular moment in time and certain things were in place at that moment in time.  Are you suggesting that other things might be open for discussion in the future if things change?

Mr. William Zutt responded no.

Mr. John Bernard asked so if environmental rules change three years hence we can come back and revisit the number of units?

Mr. William Zutt responded no.

Mr. John Bernard asked why would that be then?

Mr. William Zutt responded because you’ve already approved the plat which has been signed and filed.

Mr. John Bernard stated exactly, and it was approved under certain guidelines and one of the guidelines was this money held in abeyance.

Mr. William Zutt stated the money reflects the cost of project infrastructure Mr. Bernard and all I’m simply trying -- the point I’m simply trying to make is that one can’t predict with certainty what the project completion costs are going to be three years from now.  They may be more than 7.8 million or they may be less than 7.8 million and we just simply think that the Director of Technical Services should have the authority to establish the amount that’s appropriate at that time.

Mr. John Bernard stated nor can one predict what other changes may occur between now and three years hence.  All I’m suggesting is to allow yourself leeway on one element of this approval and not others just doesn’t make sense to me.

Mr. William Zutt responded well it does make sense simply because the 7.8 million was a condition of approval of a signing of the filing of the plat.  That has taken place.  Those lots exist today.  That’s not the kind of thing that is subject to being revisited if you will in the future with a new Resolution to be adopted. 

Mr. John Bernard stated and yet you’re wanting to revisit the escrow amount.

Mr. William Zutt stated for reasons stated yes I’m trying to establish the basis for that and I thought everybody understood that and agreed with it.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’d like to make myself clear at this point.  I’m just simply saying that we don’t adjust cost for uncompleted work during the course of a project.  We start at a number, we start at a unit cost per item for a project at a certain point in time and we stay with that unit cost per item no matter what happens with the economy as it progresses.  This security started at 7.8 million based on certain unit costs per the various items.  I don’t see why we should bring that adjustment at this point.  We don’t adjust.

Mr. William Zutt stated a gallon of paint might have cost $10 in 2007, it might cost $8.50 in 2014 or it might cost $15 and we’re just simply asking you to take that into consideration and we’re not suggesting that the dollar amount will necessarily be less or more we just don’t know.  No one can predict with any certainty what the infrastructure completion costs are going to be.  We believe that having the minimum is no more reasonable than having a maximum. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it’s up to the Board.

Mr. John Bernard stated perhaps we should leave the money in place.

Mr. William Zutt stated well, at the present time there is no money in place.  The term of the original letter of credit has expired.  We would be placing new funds with the Town, the million dollars called forth by this Resolution.

Mr. John Bernard asked has this Resolution passed?

Mr. John Klarl responded not yet.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re on the question.

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s what I thought.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m trying to figure out – I’m not quite as familiar with these kinds of things.  We usually leave these things to the Director of Technical Services.  I think his point is that once we lock into place, as he’s saying, the cost per unit, that’s what it is and I guess at the end if there’s some adjustments to be made they’re made somewhere way down the line but what you’re saying is when we come back to this amount that he has to establish, that the applicant has to establish, it has to be at minimum it has to be this amount is what you’re saying.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, I believe that was the sentiment at the last work session.

Mr. William Zutt stated I made my point.  I hope you appreciate it and I hope enough of you agree with me to modify the Resolution to reflect my wishes.  That’s all I can say.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so then, shouldn’t it say, if it’s a minimum, shouldn’t it say “no less than 7.8 million dollars?”

Mr. Ed Vergano responded there have been improvements completed, infrastructure improvements completed…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but no less than 7.8 million dollars less…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it says that.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it says your starting point is and remains 7.8 million dollars.  My only point is, as is I think Bill is also trying to say, the cost of steel and everything else to complete the infrastructure may be a lot higher in three years than it is today and therefore your per unit calculation that we did three years ago may be inadequate. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but if there’s a minimum then that means you can move it higher if the costs go up.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s not the way this reads.  If it says “at least 7.8 million dollars less the improvements,” then yes, then that is the floor, the 7.8 million dollars.

Mr. John Bernard stated you’re correct, it doesn’t say minimum.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it says “equal to.”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated “the minimum amount of the required letter of credit.”

Mr. Steven Kessler stated “equal to” is an identity.  That is what the number is.  It doesn’t say “no less than 7.8 million dollars less,” or “at a minimum 7.8 million dollars less the competed…”

Mr. John Klarl stated Steve, how about this?  How about get rid of the word “minimum” and say “the amount of the required to LC to be posted will be no less than 7.8 million dollars previously approved less the cost of already completed infrastructure as approved by DOTS.”

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m sorry…

Mr. John Klarl stated get rid of “minimum” and put “the amount of the required LC to be posted will be no less than 7.8 million dollars as previously approved less the cost of already completed infrastructure work as approved by DOTS.”

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s what I’m saying, yes.

Mr. John Klarl stated so get rid of “minimum” and say the amount will be “no less than.”

Mr. John Bernard stated it doesn’t say “minimum.”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no, no what we’re saying is that you want to delete the word “minimum,” the second word…

Mr. John Bernard stated it doesn’t say that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated go down to item 3 and you get the second word.

Mr. John Bernard stated I got it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we’re getting rid of “minimum” and “the amount of the required letter of credit to be posted will be no less than” is I think what you’re saying – the less than 7.8 million dollars…

Mr. Robert Foley asked so we’re taking out the “minimum” word and the “equal” word?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl stated instead of “equal to the” it would be “no less than.”  So “minimum” comes out and the three words “equal to the” are replaced by three words “no less than.”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re still on the question.  Is everybody satisfied with the wording or do you need more time to think about it?
Mr. John Bernard stated well I would think Mr. Zutt, since there is the element of some work having been completed that is up to the Department of Technical Services to assess valuation of that work that’s completed that I would think that reasonably if prices were 50% lower in three years than they are now to commence the rest of the work that I think an amicable agreement would be able to be worked out with DOTS to assess a proper valuation for the work completed.

Mr. William Zutt asked does that mean that we have to come back and try and demonstrate that the 7.8 million minus completed work should be a lesser sum than that?  I’m not sure I quite understand.

Mr. John Bernard responded yes, that’s exactly right.

Mr. William Zutt responded okay, fair enough.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked Ed, is that okay?  Does that sit well with you? 

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 9-99      c.
Application of Furnace Dock Inc. for Final Plat Approval for a 16 lot cluster subdivision of 42.43 acres located on the north side of Furnace Dock Road, 1,500 feet east of Albany Post Road as shown on a 2 page Subdivision Plat entitled “Subdivision Plat for Furnace Dock, Inc” latest revision dated April 11, 2011 prepared by Scott B. Gray, L.S and on a 12 page set of improvement drawings entitled “Furnace Dock Subdivision” prepared by Dan Ciarcia PE, latest revision dated  April 14, 2011.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I make motion that we remove this from the agenda per staff.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked we are removing it and just simply referring it back to you right?

Mr. John Klarl asked for July?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I don’t know what the exact right wording is.  I would just say refer it back or – because it’s going to be back in July.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re referring that back.

Seconded.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARING (NEW)

PB 3-09      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Ryan Main LLC, c/o Finklestein-Morgan, for a recommendation to the Town Board for a Special Permit for Residential Re-Use, and for Site Development Plan Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for the construction of 56 residential units to replace the existing 56 units on a 19.3 acre site located on the south side of Route 6 and the west side of Regina Avenue as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Special Land Use Permit for Pondview Commons on the Boulevard” prepared by Cronin Engineering latest revision dated April 20, 2011 (see prior PB 26-96).


Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record, the overhead machine is not working so for everybody they will have to do it the old fashion way.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated we appreciate the fact that Chris let us know that in advance so we brought the old fashioned material.  Representing Ryan Main LLC.  With me this evening the project principal Dimitri Vourliotis and Tim Cronin from Cronin Engineering.  We are here in connection with the Pondview Commons project.  As many of you will recall, several years ago the Town Board adopted a new Zoning classification, the residential re-use Special Permit with a couple of properties this one in particular specifically in mind.  The concept being to take properties that are already developed and with aging structures that are in need of attention, that are in disrepair or esthetically no longer pleasing and functional and to take those types of projects and reuse them.  In effect, recycle a development and come up with something similar but new.  In fact, the Town Board in its wisdom allowed projects of that nature to come back before the Town and increase the density of what was already present.  However, I’m proud to inform you, as I think you’re all well aware, we’re not doing that here.  There is a 56 unit project currently immediately east of the Cortlandt Town Center on 20 acres, a little less than 20 acres.  That project, which the existing conditions are before you on the version of the map that Tim has in front of us right now, there are – how many buildings are there in this version Tim?  Is there also 28 – 26 or 28 buildings, we can count them while we’re here.  There are 56 units.  The residential re-use Special Permit allows for no more than two-bedroom units.  These are smaller modest sized homes and we are proposing a 56 unit contained in 28 buildings with the road network that we’ll walk you through momentarily.  This is a condominium proposal, a condominium project that would require site plan approval.  Each unit would be a member of a condominium association.  A unit owner would own their condominium unit in fee simple and they would own a percentage undivided interest in the common elements.  The common elements will include open space as well as a small community center, recreational facility.  The road network, currently is, as I think you know, let’s just flip back to that for a moment, currently there is access out to Regina.  There is a point of connection, what I’ll call ‘in the middle,’ and a point of connection out to Route 6 to the west.  So, we have three different basic means of ingress and egress.  The proposal is to eliminate the middle, improve the westerly connection and leave Regina.  However, the good news is that the applicant is willing to fully cooperate with the Town of Cortlandt to have an even better potential, and I underscore the word “potential.”  What you may not know and I’m not sure what the Town Board and what council have advised you.  I was advised last week that the Town is making meaningful progress with the beverage distributor located on Route 6.  I think you will recall we talked about this with you long ago at the beginning of this project.  Dimitri and his partners are willing to carve out a parcel on their property and permit the Town to relocate the beverage distributor to another location.  The purpose of doing that would be to facilitate and improve vehicular access point at Baker Street.  That would provide for a four-way intersection at Baker Street, Cortlandt Town Center would be able to take its current point of egress and move it to the east and have a better potentially signalized intersection at that point.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Steinmetz a concept of that was put in the Planning Board member’s packets tonight.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated terrific, so you all have a concept and I think in fact you’ll recall, correct me if I’m wrong both Tim and Dimitri, a concept of that nature was also presented to you as an alternative in our expanded environmental assessment form.  And, I should say for the record that you all do have the Pondview Commons long environmental assessment form which was prepared by Tim’s office.  It contains a number of studies, traffic, storm water, esthetic, a number of alternative layouts and one of those layouts includes Dimitri and his partner’s participating in this.  Now, I said underscore the word “potential,” it’s a potentiality, it’s not a guarantee.  It doesn’t happen unless the Town Board is successful in pulling a number of pieces together.  We’re very optimistic, maybe it’s more appropriate to say we’re cautiously optimistic that that will happen and certainly, should your Board find the Town in a position at some point in the future where that can happen, then we would recommend that your approval provide for the abandonment of – Tim if you could just show – the abandonment of our point of egress on the east, the elimination of it and then we would connect into the new four-way intersection.  I wish I could tell you right now that that’s happening and that’s going to happen tomorrow and we can approve this and do this.  We can’t.  Unfortunately, it’s beyond Dimitri’s control so it wouldn’t be fair for us to sit around with a project that I genuinely believe the Town Board and the Town had been waiting to see come through the approval process because this is the first RRUSP, this is an important RUSP, this is an important physically located piece of property that we think is going to be a wonderful project once it’s restored.  Dimitri and his partners have decided not to request expanded density.  We talked about it at length with the Town Board.  We talked about it at length as a development team and the decision was made to come back with the same 56 units.  In addition to the road network, the sewer situation; currently the Town Board is examining a number of different potential sewer district modifications along the Route 6 corridor, one would relate specifically to existing businesses and residences east on Route 6, another would relate to the Cortlandt Town Center and another would relate to our property, the Westrock project on the other side of the street and the immediate vicinity of Van Cortlandt School, etc.  We believe that that will all take place in the coming months.  The Town Board has been working, and Ed can speak to it probably far more extensively than we can.  We know that we need to connect to the sewer.  We’ve spent a lot of time and my client has spent a lot of money studying the various iterations of the sewer improvements.  Dimitri and his partners have agreed to contribute $750,000 in connection with an off-site improvement fund, some of which would go to these infrastructure improvements that we’re talking about.  Any approval of this Board would be like any other project I’ve ever and we’ve ever done together.  You’re approval would be conditioned upon our ability to connect to an appropriate sized capacity sewer.  We believe that will happen in conjunction with the Town Board.  That’s being handled separately.  So, where are we procedurally?  Your Board – let me take a giant step back.  I started this project with Tim and Dimitri in front of the Town Board right after the RRUSP was adopted.  Under the RRUSP Ordinance which is a new Ordinance and this is the first project to go through.  The process starts at the Town Board.  The Town Board does an intake on the project, decides whether the project meets the RRUSP criteria and if the Town Board is desirous of moving forward it then sends it to the Planning Board.  That took place a long time ago.  We went to the Town Board, we did a few meetings there and the Town Board thought that this is in fact what RRUSP was designed to do.  They sent us with a favorable inclination for us to move forward to your Board.  You declared yourselves lead agency and we have spent the ensuing period of time doing a host of environmental reports and studies that you requested, that way was public input on and most importantly your professional staff chimed in and told us what we needed to do.  We received a letter from the Town’s environmental consultant s Allee, King, Rosen and Fleming back in November and I must say, as the recipient on behalf of my clients, of a lot of municipal reports from your Planning Board, this particular report from your experts was, I would say, glowing in many respects.  Tim’s office did a terrific job on this.  I’m just going to read the final paragraph: “in conclusion, the proposed project would be consistent with the intent and purpose of the Town’s residential re-use Special Permit RUSP to replace pre-existing non-conforming multi-family developments and encourage multi-family developments through a creative re-use of the smaller bungalow type developments in the Town.  In addition, the proposed project would promote a development pattern that would be in harmony with the objectives of the Town’s master plan by improving the appearance of an existing neighborhood and corridor and enhancing the overall visual character of the Town.”  That was from the Technical Director of your environmental consultant.  I’m here tonight in connection with a public hearing on the RRUSP, the Special Permit, Steep Slopes, wetlands, a SEQRA hearing, tree removal, and Chris will tell me if I missed anything.  The purpose of why we’re here is to secure from your Board under the RRUSP statute, specifically section 307-94.2D4b, you guys drafted it not we…
Mr. John Klarl stated the top of the page on the handout.

Mr. David Steinmetz continued that section step 4 in the sequential review of RRUSPs.  We’re now in front of you for a review of both the project and a SEQRA review.  In order for this project to move forward we actually have to have the floating zone or layer of the RRUSP formally placed on the property.  That can only occur by action of the Town Board, an action of the Town Board as an involved agency is an action under SEQRA.   That can only occur if the SEQRA process is complete.  So, we need you to do two things: 1) to recommend in favor of the placement of the RRUSP on this property, and 2) to complete the SEQRA process.  I know you had a discussion, my partner Brad Schwartz was at your work session and I know you had a procedural discussion about this last Thursday night.  We believe you’re in a position this evening, after the close of the public hearing should you close it, to adopt a negative declaration.  My understanding is that you may choose to go informally, or by Resolution back to the Town Board for their acknowledgment before you actually adopt a neg. dec.  Just so you know, my position on behalf of my client and our team is that is not required, that is not contemplated by the RRUSP.  The RRUSP contemplates that you would complete your SEQRA review and under New York State law the completion of the SEQRA review is the adoption of a neg. dec.  However you choose to do it we believe you’re now armed with the environmental technical studies, with the professional analysis of your in-house staff and with the professional analysis of your outside consultants to conclude the environmental review of the RRUSP, that doesn’t mean the project’s done and approved, it simply means we go back to the Town Board.  We now have a mandatory public hearing in front of the Town Board.  The Town Board, with your recommendation and the close of SEQRA, would then have a public hearing, again for an opportunity of public comment and hopefully they would then issue a Resolution layering the RRUSP onto the property.  We will then be back.  We’ll be back for, what I would consider to be final technical review of minor issues or specific issues related to the project and then ultimately your Board is vested with authority to grant site plan approval, the Special Permit, the tree removal Permit, and the steep slopes relief and a wetlands Permit.  In terms of wetlands we are taking a site that currently has rather challenged to say possibly, wetlands and spending a fair amount of energy remediating and avoiding some significant impacts.  The wetlands currently have all – and I know many of you have been out there.  I’ve been out on a site walk with some of you and I know there was another walk done recently.  We are removing a tremendous amount of debris and things that simply don’t belong in the wetlands from that area.  The site will be finally governed by a condominium association which will hopefully not only enhance but continue to protect the open space and the wetlands.  Dimitri and his partners are confident that the project will not only be esthetically pleasing, which was a goal of the Town Board, it will meet a niche here in the Town.  These are two-bedroom, I’ll call it mid-market priced type of condominium units and something that is exactly what RRUSP was originally designed to do.  Eliminate an older project that’s in need of attention.  With that as our introduction for purposes of the public hearing, we’re anxious to hear any comments that the public may have, that your Board members may have and we’re happy to discuss any questions along the lines of the sewer and the road network which I think could be the only real issues that really remain for further discussion.  Thank you.

Mr. John Klarl stated Madame Chair, I just want to indicate what Mr. Steinmetz laid out is all relevant and all factually true but when we looked at – we had a conference call last week looking at 307-94.2D4b, which is at the top of the page when Chris gave out the handout on the Ordinance and the language is “upon completion by the Planning Board of the SEQRA review” and I think the arguments on both sides what that means, is a SEQRA review, is it a SEQRA review or does SEQRA mean to obtain the SEQRA determination?  Obviously there’s approvals by the Planning Board here, there’s approvals by the Town Board here and SEQRA tells us we’re supposed to do coordinated review so for that reason that’s why we discussed it in our conference call Mr. Steinmetz and Mr. Schwartz and at our work session last week that possibly an abundance of caution we should do is just adjourn the final completion of SEQRA, tell the Town Board what we’re ready to do just in case they want to chime in before we do it.  We don’t want to reach a SEQRA determination and find out another Board in this Town has some kind of issues and we do that with Planning Board and Zoning Board all the time and one time in the last two years we let one close a little too quick and the Planning Board had something to say and the Zoning Board of Appeals had something to say.  Obviously Mr. Steinmetz is not the draft person of 4b, the Town is, but is subject to some interpretation and even we found the ghost authors of the legislation and they weren’t absolutely sure which way that should fly.  This is the first maiden voyage for RRUSP and so obviously as you find out how a Code works when you practice it and try to apply it to a given situation but at an abundance of caution we would ask that we alert the Town Board but not complete our SEQRA review and determination tonight.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated practically speaking, we can’t do it tonight.  I haven’t prepared the necessary SEQRA documents for you to adopt the negative declaration.

Mr. John Klarl stated but that’s coming down the pipe, but I think we should tell the Town Board.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I just want to add that’s entirely consistent with what John did say to me in that conference call.  He’s absolutely correct.  I am aware that Chris doesn’t have a neg. dec. Resolution before you so what I would ask you to do in the spirit of moving forward and compromise is to at least have Chris, should you be so inclined, prepare a draft, nobody’s going to vote on it because you’ve already told – at least council has told me it’s not going to be voted on, it’s not in front of you.  So, I would ask that you consider having a draft prepared while simultaneously this is going back to the Town Board for, John I don’t know what your phrase was, just kind of giving them advance notice or heads up that this was…

Mr. John Klarl stated right, the idea is not to hold up the process but to make sure the Town Board is on board as this Board moves forward with SEQRA review or determination or whatever.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why are we presupposing a neg. dec. here?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it’s in your public notice as well that this was in connection – a SEQRA public hearing in anticipation of – I don’t have the notice in front of me.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but that’s standard language.  It could also be written that you’re contemplating a positive declaration but when the environmental review started it started with the idea of the expanded part III, going through the process and then reserving the right to pos. dec. or a neg. dec.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated and there’s a different outcome, if we pos. dec. it and tell the Town Board that then the outcome you described where it basically just comes back here for fine tuning and for technical issues is different because then we haven’t gone through the SEQRA process.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated without question.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so you’re still suggesting we do the same thing whether we pos. dec. or whether we want a neg. dec.?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m not sure I understand the last question.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated if we neg. dec. I understand the point that it’ll then go to the Town Board saying that that’s our leaning and then obviously basically SEQRA’s been run through and when it comes back there’s just fine tuning to do.  If we pos. dec. there’s a lot more SEQRA involved.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the only thing I would suggest to you would be that the empirical data and the record that the Town now has based upon the professional consultants you chose to send this out to is that there is no identification of a potential, significant adverse environmental impact.  In fact, I’m pleased to tell you that as a result of what my client did and worked with your staff and with your outside consultants, your outside consultants have come back and not indicated that there’s…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but David, part of that is also the public hearing process to determine that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated absolutely.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and that’s what we’re here for.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated and this Board to discuss it, we haven’t even discussed it amongst ourselves yet.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but that’s with the input from the public as well.  There’s still that process that we’re just on the ten yard line here going forward.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated understood.

Mr. Robert Foley asked David, so you know, I think Brad was at the work session I also asked about why the presumption of the neg. dec.  I saw it in the public hearing notice but…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Steve, I’ll remind you that probably two years ago there was a discussion at a Planning Board meeting about moving in a direction of conditioned neg. dec. on this project and we’ve done everything we could to avoid that to just present this in the form of a project that would have already mitigated and analyzed all the issues so the we would be in a position for a neg. dec. at this point.  Just so you’re aware, by no means should anyone on this Board be ambushed by the notion of a neg. dec.  It was discussed openly and somewhat extensively probably two years ago.

Mr. John Bernard asked so what you do need to happen though, whether it’s pos. or neg. dec. is for us to get it back to the Town Board so that the overlay zone can be installed?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes, with the one modification Mr. Bernard, if a majority of this Board would now tell me you were inclined to pos. dec. it, again I don’t have any basis to believe you would but were you telling me that then I would suggest to you “don’t send it to the Town Board, let’s take a look at what your issues are and let’s address them because that would be the better way to do this.”  That was always our goal as a team, and I don’t believe staff ever disagreed with that, and Mr. Klarl I’m sure will correct me if he disagrees, we were trying, from the moment we filed this to achieve an ability to analyze every issue that we would probably analyze in an EIS but do it, instead of in a 12 pound bundle of documents we got in an about 4 ½ pound bundle.  Certainly SEQRA permits us to do that and if there were ever a project, again, this is not a virgin site, to the contrary, this is an already developed extensively developed and extensively impacted site that’s why we all thought this would be a prudent course of action.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  Before I do that, I need to say that there are conversations that will have been had before the Planning Board sees a particular application but the Planning Board is the Planning Board and it makes final determinations on applications so I don’t know what was agreed to or what was thought to have been agreed to.  As far as I’m concerned we will conduct the process.  We will make our issues known.  The public will make its issues known and we are going to arrive at either a pos. or a neg. dec.  I don’t know what other discussions were had but they weren’t had with us.

Mr. John Klarl stated that’s why we’re supposed to do coordinated review with other Boards.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there are members of the public who wish to come up and address this particular matter please feel free to do so.  When you get to the mike, please identify yourself first.  We need to know your name and where you live.

Mr. David Schwartz stated I live in New Lebanon, New York.  I own the property across the street from the 56 units that’s being discussed.  I’ve owned the property for close to 30 years.  My children even went to day camp when it was Lakeview cottages.

Mr. Robert Foley asked across the street on Regina or Route 6?

Mr. David Schwartz responded on Route 6 or George’s Cottages.  Over the years Mr. Gillen owned the property.  It was turned over to the homeless.  It deteriorated tremendously.  I very much care for my property.  I care for where I live.  I just felt that it was wrong what was done as far as subsidizing $5,000 a month for the homeless versus really trying to help them and I chose to get nice working people on my property and it’s been a real problem trying to rent my units with what is across the street.  I think this is an incredible concept.  It would bring in a tremendous amount of taxes to the Town compared to ways it’s presently being taxed.  I do a lot of business with the Curry organization where you’ve condoned its removal of existing buildings and refurbishing them with new buildings.  I think this is a similar situation and I’m very much for it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. David Schwartz stated you’re welcome.

Mr. David Wald stated Conklin Avenue.  I’m here also to express support for this project.  I think it provides the Town with an incredible opportunity to take a site that is very dilapidated and to dramatically improve it.  A few weeks ago a landscape architect came into my office and just by chance we began to talk about this site and he said to me something, he said “this is a beautiful site.  It’s a beautiful property.”  I would go by it all the time and I would never have thought that because the impact is one of row houses without any esthetic beauty whatsoever, so I was very pleased when I learned about the potential of this re-development.  I think it affords the Town an opportunity to deal with safety issues and there are numerous safety issues in that immediate vicinity.  Just today I was on Baker Street and there was an accident, someone coming out of the bear distributorship and so if you could eliminate possibly one access and egress to Route 6, that’s a tremendous accomplishment and achievement.  Sewers are a major concern in that area and in Westchester County in this day and age, on Route 6, heavily populated area, not to have sewers east of the mall is real problematic for a lot of business owners and residents in that area.  So, I think to the extent that the infrastructure can be improved and sewer lines can be expanded that is nothing but a positive for the area.  I appreciate the fact that there’s no additional development, that the proposal calls for 56 replacement in kind for what’s there and I just think it’s a bundle of opportunity for the Town to dramatically enhance the neighborhood.  I speak with someone with a lot of knowledge of that neighborhood.  I own property that abuts David Schwartz’s who just spoke.  I own on the east side of Baker Street number 2 through 18, the right side when you come in and this is not a Planning Board issue that I’m going to refer to now but it’s a police issue, but just today I spent time at the state trooper’s outpost behind the Town Center dealing with an incident that occurred to one of my tenants last night and frankly I was shocked to hear the state trooper talking about what’s going on.  I’m not just talking about drugs on that property, I’m talking about way, way beyond that and to me it was shocking.  It’s not a Planning Board issue, it’s a police issue but I look at the potential here to really upgrade the site, enhance its value, enhance its beauty, mitigate the problems that you have and I just see it as a wonderful opportunity for the Town.  Thank you very much.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. Dean MacBeth stated Helena Court.  This is also probably not a Planning Board issue but I guess the question I would also ask us to consider is actually what’s going to happen to those people who live there?  What impact that’s going to have on the Town if they’re just moved or I don’t exactly know what the plans are for them and second of all I guess it’s we’re also probably looking at they’re all two-bedroom units, probably a different density for schools, etc.  I don’t know where that fits into the planning but I’m just saying there are human beings living there and I’m sort of curious as to who and what and how that would transpire.  I don’t know that that’s a Planning Board issue it’s just sort of a human issue for me.  Thanks.

Mr. Jim McPartlan stated I have a house and lived on Regina Avenue for about 26 years.  This presents an opportunity for you to do something right for the Town with regards to the overall atmosphere.  I’ve watched what’s going on across the street for 26 years.  I’ve seen the incidents going on there.  I’ve seen the numerous police presence going on in there.  This is an opportunity for the Planning Board to do something right for the Town, to make that area better for the residents, better for my family and better for everybody else in the area.  We’re not only interested in that of course but anything to get me down with the sewer and with the changes of course in the structure of Route 6 with regards to egress to it which is almost impossible.  Right now quality of life trying to get out of there is a complete hazard to anybody living on that block or any of the adjacent blocks for that matter.  This is a time for you to start looking at that from the point of view of the residents who’ve lived there for the last 25 to 30 years.  I need to know something more about how this process works too because a lot of the terms you’ve been throwing around sound to me a lot of bureaucratic non-sense and I need to be able to speak to some of these people about what exactly is involved in these technical issues.  What goes on in your minds about how this proceeds and what terms you’re using to try to either forestall or promote this project in reality.  I’d be very interested in talking to any one of you or this Planning Board in general, at length, about this project and how it proceeds.  Thank you very much gentlemen.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked excuse me could you just point to where you are on Regina Avenue?

Mr. Jim McPartlan responded 17.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked all the way on the left.

Mr. Jim McPartlan showed members of the Board his location on the map.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else who wants to voice an opinion?

Ms. Heather Macpherson stated I live off of Baker on Cardozo Avenue and I’m with the Cortlandt Colony and we are definitely in favor of the project.  We believe it’ll make the area more beautiful and we just think it would have a positive impact on our community.  We’re very happy about the potential for the traffic light because it is difficult to get out of there.  I’ve been living there about three years now and those are my two reasons for possibly not moving were unfortunately the unsightly cottages and having to think about the safety of my family as well as coming out of Baker because it’s very difficult to make the left.  But, also another concern for the community, and I did hear it discussed briefly, was the sewer line so I didn’t know how far it would be going up Baker.  I know that it also borders the other development Westrock.  On behalf of my community I wanted to mention that we would definitely be interested in hearing more about plans for sewer in that area.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.  Is there anybody else in the audience who would like to make comments?  
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked Madame Chairwoman, may I?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, I wanted to ask the Board if they had some input at this point.  Do you want to say something?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no, I’m happy to listen to Mr. Bianchi’s question.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated just the report on the site that we did have on Sunday.  I agree with a lot of things that were said here regarding of the quality of the project and the need for it but I think our site visit was focused on usual problem of traffic and while the future intersection proposal is very good, the operative word is “future,” and what is that defined as.  Currently, and somebody pointed this out – one of the speaker’s pointed this out is that the density is going to be greater than what’s there now, which means there will be more traffic going in and out of the development, out of the condominium complex and with that road that intersects with Route 6 where you can’t make a left turn, my concern is that: how are these people going to exit and enter that property safely?  Before, while or in anticipation of the future intersection at Baker Street which would solve the problem.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Madame Chair can I respond to Mr. Bianchi?  I hear what you’re saying and you and others have said that before.  Anecdotally, I know I’ve heard my clients say that some of the residents have multiple cars associated with a given unit – so, anecdotally we’re not certain that you’re right, that there will be more vehicles.  The density count of the units will not change however, your traffic expert did do an analysis of this.  I’m referring to the 2009 traffic analysis performed by Adler Consulting, and he took a conservative view, as you are, that there will be more vehicles and considering that the development is accessed to a principal state arterial roadway, it is not expected that the additional trips will have an additional impact on area traffic operating conditions.  The left turns, Tom I wish I could say to you the left turns are going to suddenly become easier.  They won’t and I’m not going to say that but I’m going to take a giant step backwards.  I represent Westrock as well as you know.  I’ve spent the last year and a half having a number of different meetings with the Town Board, with Town staff as Westrock is trying to figure out how best to address its particular property and project and how it impacts Baker Street and the neighborhood there.  And, there are no final answers on any of that but I’ll give you my opinion.  You’ll take it or reject it as you always do.  Something has to happen first to create a synergy for other things to happen.  I am convinced spending now three years on these two projects as a professional with two different clients on two different sides of the street and looking at this that something has to happen to create the impetus for the other pieces.  This is it.  Dimitri’s project is well ahead of Westrock and well ahead of anything else that may ultimately happen on Route 6.  Dimitri is the one that owns the piece of land that would allow the beverage center potentially I hope it happens, ask your Town attorney because they negotiated with the beverage center, not I.  I’m told that that could actually happen.  It only happens if he gives the Town of Cortlandt the piece of land to make it happen.  You guys may need to actually take a bit of a big step.  I don’t think that it’s an irresponsible step.  You have your traffic consultants saying it’s a favorable step and you have your environmental consultant saying we’re in agreement with the report’s analysis and conclusions that the redevelopment of the site would not be expected to result in the generation of significant levels of traffic or affect the operating conditions of the area roadways.  The good news is two traffic professionals have told your Board and the public, this doesn’t look like it’s going to make things worse.  I’m not here telling you I’m guaranteeing it’s going to make things better.  I’m absolutely here telling you that this is the first step in the Town of Cortlandt to making the whole area much better.  Because, the sequence is as follows: Dimitri’s project gets a green light and he moves forward.  He moves forward with two left turns that none of us or two left turn areas that none of us would like to see perpetuated in the Town of Cortlandt but he donates a piece of land to the Town of Cortlandt.  The Town of Cortlandt then relocates the beverage gentleman who apparently is willing to do so.  Once that happens, the other pieces of the puzzle can begin to fall in place.  Cortlandt Town Center can agree to move its point of egress to the east.  Westrock maybe moves forward and ultimately funds a portion of infrastructure which results in Ms. Macpherson in her neighborhood having a traffic light at Baker Street and a whole new corridor in front of Route 6 that works.  I’m not here to tell you I guarantee it’s going to happen.  I’m absolutely here to tell you if his project goes nowhere then his neighborhood stays the way it is, the neighbors who have spoken tonight don’t get what they want, which is an improvement, you have the wonderful Cortlandt Town Center which my family and I go to, you all go to and you have something next to it immediately to the east – I don’t live there but I gather there are security and safety issues.  So, Tom it’s a long winded answer saying you’re not doing something…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated somebody’s got to go first.  I know what you’re saying.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you may not feel great at the moment but it’s got to happen.  He’s got development rights on that property and your Town Board enacted this RRUSP Ordinance.  I was at every one of those hearings, believe me and I know you folks know it his project was paramount in their minds when they adopted RRUSP.  We’ve done what RRUSP wanted us to do.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you don’t have to sell me on the project because I think the project is obviously a very good one.  I just voice my concern with the temporary situation that will exist there.  The current situation is not good so it’ll continue to be not good or worse because it’s not going to get better until and when the intersection is constructed.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and I believe your Board actually has a lot of power in that regard, a lot of influence in helping a sequence of events and unfortunately the mike just keeps going so I apologize inside.  One of the improvements the Town could use would be for this thing to not move so much.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it was fine until you were playing with it.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated Dave, just for the record, if and when and I’m very optimistic about this improvement happening at Baker Street when that happens, let’s be positive here, your client will then in turn connect to that intersection and close up the other curb cuts, correct?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes, and I said that earlier and I think the Planning Board is well aware Tim’s EAF and his proposal shows that our point of egress to the easterly of our two points of egress would be closed off.  Tim, maybe you can just walk through that exactly what you would eliminate and where you would tie in.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated what we’re proposing right now is utilizing the existing access onto Route 6 which is right here.  In the event that we were able to redo the intersection with Baker Street which would be right up in around this area here, the beer distributor would likely be moved to the south and this intersection would then become a four-way intersection, Route 6, Baker Street and our new road and then this connection here, this would be eliminated onto Route 6 and then we tie into the new road coming off of Route 6 right up in here.  That’s an option which we’ll explore further with staff and with Ed.  Or, in the alternative there’s even a possibility of bringing a roadway down this way but that would require much more wetlands disturbance but the other option is something we’re willing to explore further.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked as a temporary measure you’re talking about?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded no, that would be permanent.  Once Baker Street’s in….

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked but once Baker Street is in?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes, this is done.  That’s eliminated and Baker Street becomes the way in and out.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated from a traffic management standpoint it would really make more sense to take that second option Tim was talking about exactly on that side of the pond.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated this is the existing conditions plan but our development is essentially in this area.  We would cross the wetland south of the pond, tie into the road, the beer store would be moved back and then our road would come in this way where our access onto 6 or to the intersection would be as I just shown and then a new access going right into the mall.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the beer store would be moved over.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated over, because you said back.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded here or to the south, wherever – that’s a discussion the Town will have.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have a feeling that if you’re talking about moving it back he’s not going to go for that.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated he’d be moved over. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated over, that’s what we’re talking about.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just east of the existing location.

Mr. Robert Foley stated he would be demolished and the site…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated there was I believe, John you may not know, but when Mr. Wood met with the beer distributor there was a proposed location for a building envelop and a parcel…

Mr. John Klarl stated that’s my understanding.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s over and back but because it would be on this new road with a signalized intersection and traffic flow in and out of Cortlandt Town Center he realized the value of this new location.  It’s more conducive to vehicles in and out than his current site because you all know going eastbound trying to make a left into his beverage center is no easier than it is to make a left out of Pondview.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked is there a time line of when the Baker Street…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’ve been active in – I don’t want to use the word “negotiation” – but conversations with of course the applicant, the Cortlandt Town Center and Westrock to try to pull all these pieces together.  This intersection would require two new left turn lanes on Route 6 which would cost a substantial amount of money.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked don’t you need DOT approval also?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded we already did the warrant study to warrant the signals to see whether the signals were warranted and that came back positive.  The signals are warranted.  I’ve met out in the field with representatives from the DOT.  They agree with the project.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but they also agreed with the hospital.  How many years did that take?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded a long time.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we can agree but we may not see this…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated again, that’s…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m sorry to interrupt but that was state funded and this would be privately funded.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated exactly, that’s right.  That’s why we’re talking to Cortlandt Town Center.  That’s why we’re talking to Westrock and the applicant does have some money that can be put into the kittle.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated there’s a budget for all of this work Steve that we’ve been talking about for over two years.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’re not relying on state funds?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.  Ed, is there any state funding in that package that I’m unaware of?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded there very well could be.  There is a grant that…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated unlike Hudson Valley Hospital where it was all state funding.  Here there’s literally seven figures of private funding.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked are we talking years in terms of – in terms of 5 years, less more, you don’t know?  I’m not asking you – I know you can’t predict…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded optimistically it could be two years.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked two years from today?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded from today.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated from tomorrow.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked this project will be completed if it goes forward approximately when?

Mr. David Steinmetz asked this project?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded yes.  Will it be potentially coincide with…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded if you elbow the guy to your left and ask him if he knows when the sewer will be made available by the Town then we can begin to analyze our piece.  If you buy into our team’s proposed timeline, we could conceivably have an approval from your Board in the next several months, sometime in the foreseeable near future.  We need, however, the Town Board to pull some other pieces together.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated my point is that maybe this can coincide – this can all come together.  It sounds like that’s a possibility.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s a possibility but I don’t want to create an unrealistic expectation.  Tom, Westrock is further behind on this and we all know that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated my suggestion would be just that Town Board realize that it’s important to push those other projects along.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked can I remind you, you said that when I come back on Westrock?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this becomes very difficult that you ask the Board to approve of something with so many pieces sort of dangling and nobody stepping forward.  This applicant has obviously stepped forward and said he would comply this and one thing or the other and he would be willing to change the access once the connection is made to Baker Street and I find that very positive, but at the same time you’re talking about 56 units not 5 or 6, it’s 56 and there are people who are coming out trying to get to work perhaps, probably more of them would then need to go west, in other words make a left turn than right because they would be headed towards lower Westchester, Peekskill train station whatever, and they can’t make a left.  Whether they’re coming out of Regina or whether they’re coming out directly the site it’s a real problem for people.  If they can only make right turns what could you arrange in the interim that would make it a little more palatable for people to come in and spend that kind of money for a home once they realize they can only turn right and they don’t really want to go right at 8:00 in the morning or quarter to eight.  They want to go left so they can go to the train station.  These kinds of things impact people’s lives also, the people who are buying into this new project.  I think the Board, and don’t attempt ever to speak for them, but I think most members on the Board think it’s a valuable project and would like to see it go forward but on the other hand we are saying “okay, we approve of this project and we know from the start that these people who are buying into this, some of them will be miserable trying to go to work every day or at least five days a week.”  It makes you have to pause and think.  Can you do something in the interim that will help ease this kind of a burden on these people?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I don’t believe any of the traffic consultants have made recommendations that anything like that was necessary or that they recommended that it would be a great idea.  Madame Chair, maybe the police who I gather are spending a fair amount of time at this property now won’t have to do that.  Maybe they’ll come out once in awhile and stand on Route 6 and facilitate traffic making left turns at 8:00 in the morning to get to the train station if there’s a public need for that to happen because there’s not going to be a public need – when I first got involved in this project I was asked to take a look at the local Town of Cortlandt police blotter.  You take a look at the local Town of Cortlandt police blotter you’re going to see a lot of the matters on your local blotter are coming from this area.  It’s a fact.  It’s reality so maybe they’re will be more public service generated for the Town’s residents to facilitate left turns on Route 6, better traffic flow on Route 6.  To me, the mantra here is you have a corridor.  The Town Board wants to see the Cortlandt Boulevard improved.  Your Board wants to see this area improved.  You’ve got to start somewhere.  I wish I was in front of you saying “I’ve got a traffic light in store and that’s going to come out on Regina and the gentleman who’s spent 26 years watching all this decay, he’s going to get his left turn at that light.”  It’s not happening so what I can assure you is we’re taking a giant step forward.  We had a public hearing tonight.  There wasn’t one negative comment from the public about this project.  There wasn’t one comment that we have environmental issues that we haven’t studied.  I haven’t read one letter that my client paid for the Town’s consultants to analyze his project.  None of them said that we did a lousy job as a development team and that we haven’t mitigated the impacts.
Mr. Robert Foley asked Mr. Steinmetz, with Chairwoman’s permission can the rest of the Board comment?  First of all, yes it will be an improvement on the surface.  You weren’t at the site visit but on Sunday’s second site visit that I was at we were there about two or three years ago, I want to build on what Tom is saying and with what Loretta is saying because as we stood there on the sidewalk right up against the curb on Route 6 on a Sunday morning, not when it’s peak hour when the cars are moving slow because they are stopped going up a hill in traffic, this was at 9 or 10 am on a Sunday morning.  You could feel the breeze of the cars whipping by you and a lady with her child is walking towards the Town Center, we had to step aside so she didn’t stand into the road to get around it.  So, any improvement on Route 6 would be great.  And, the Baker Street concept, I think we all agree.  The question here is and it’s been said, if we could emphasize, and we did say this Sunday morning to our Town Board how crucial this is to keep moving along with not just a hand shake agreement about the beer and soda building and/or with the DOT but to keep moving that along swiftly while, if this thing is approved, the applicant is proceeding so that there’ll be no lag there of a year or two, because I think it’s crucial that that ultimate four-way controlled intersection be done as soon as possible.  Second, you’re right there wasn’t any negative comments.  I wondered in this process, that’s why I would hopefully adjourn this, Yorktown would have to weigh in and they were notified with the other interested agencies because of this issue of what Tom brought up and what we brought up at the site visit.  With the no left turn, the cars, unless it’s midnight or 5:00 am when they can legally make a safe left hand turn to go to Peekskill, the train station wherever they’re going points west they’re going to make a right or be forced to make the right and go up into Yorktown.  Then they either have to turn on Lexington and find a turnaround going to the former gas station and turn around and cause more problems and it will just bring no left turn traffic that has to make a right into those adjoining neighborhoods up in Yorktown.  I want to see what Yorktown weighs in with on this.  The other thing, I’ll get back to traffic in a minute, on the sewer issue because one of the residents asked, I’d like to, yes, get word out to the residents on the extent of the reach of the sewer line into any residential areas and the cost to them not just the reach along Route 6 to the business establishments which I know have to be improved also.  Again, this was a precept of the all sewer and water committee that John and I served on long before we were on this Planning Board, I think before you were here Ed.  Back to the road access or the traffic report that you alluded to and when I first read that Mr. Canning’s Adler report in ’09 or October and then a June 30th, 2010, at the time I was surprise they were saying there wouldn’t be any significant impact which seems to be always what they say.  I’m wondering, and you just alluded to it Mr. Steinmetz, that maybe the consultant didn’t consider the no left turn and if he did and I don’t think he did here then he should have perhaps.  Did he consider it in the ’10 report?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes it’s the letter ‘h’ in the report.  He doesn’t say that there’s necessarily a solution but he raises the issue.
Mr. David Steinmetz responded he’s aware of it.

Mr. Robert Foley asked that it would be a problem? 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Foley, one quick point of information.  The no left is 7:00 pm to 7:00 am.  Just so you’re aware, early in the morning and later in the evening the left turn is legal at both of those locations.  Just so that that’s clear. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated you’re right because I’ve made a left out of Regina late at night when there wasn’t any traffic.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and 56 families have been living there for 20 some odd years and making lefts.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it was an issue when Cortlandt Self Storage was being improved by this Board.  It took like a year to get the no left turn sign put up.  You’ve got a good project, an improvement in the area with a lot of improvements for the Town and amenities but it’s kind of where unfortunately Mr. Dimitri is located and this Route 6 corridor problem.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it is what it is.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the good news is that we’re not going to make it worse.  Hopefully we’re positioned to make it better.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so I’d like hear what Yorktown says and if there are any other resident comments and – I’d like to talk with Mr. McPartlan – I recognize you.  I know you’ve been there many, many years.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I want to make clear in my head this business with the connection for sewers because I asked on the site visit Sunday about it and I got the feeling that the applicant is willing to go either way; go up towards Yorktown to make the connections or when and if we get sewers over in Baker and along the rest of 6, move it that way.  Then I read, when I was reading something in the revised reports it sounded as if all the sewers because of the new negotiations with the Town and establishing some new districts or something that that sewer district would be contained totally within the Town of Cortlandt.  I’m a little bit confused.  Are we trying to get it all in Cortlandt or are we going to connect into Yorktown?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I would defer to your Town Engineer and your Town Attorney because I think they know best as to what the Town and what the Town Board are doing.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated ultimately we want to keep all the servicing of the existing businesses in Town, the sewer service in Town.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated because that seemed to be the new discussion when I read the revised materials.  It seemed as if there was trying to keep everything all contained, everything within the Town of Cortlandt.  That is actually what you’re trying to do as opposed to what I was told on Sunday?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded at this point yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on the sewers Ed that would just be an internal sewer district for the residents of the 56 new units?  In other words the home owners association would maintain it?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded at this point in time yes.  That would be an individual district. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked individual and then they’re connected to PSSD?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the commercial districts on Route 6 and the individual residential district i.e.: Baker Street would be separate.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other concerns or questions?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I was just wondering, staff have we received any comments back from the letters that you sent out to interested parties?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words the county didn’t weigh in either because I think they’re key too.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe we can just keep this open one more round.  You can send additional notices that we’re going to have to wrap this up to some extent and get into the next phase.  We’ll keep it open maybe until the next meeting, the July meeting and at that point we’ll have to – if nobody else shows up, no other letters come in, then we’ll just…

Mr. John Klarl asked do you want staff to prepare a neg. dec. for next time?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I guess if we’re going to get any additional comments, especially if we don’t get any negative ones I guess we might have to.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you can always say no to it, why not?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think it’s a great project but I have some serious issues about what people are buying into.  It always comes down to that Mr. Steinmetz and I don’t always agree on things when it comes to that. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we try though Loretta.  We try.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated look, Mr. Steinmetz I still remember many years ago there was a certain lawyer who was representing a certain client who wanted 352 homes to come out onto Route 9 and that would have made my life a misery.  I’m so glad that we decided not to…

Mr. David Steinmetz asked it wasn’t my project though?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded no.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Loretta that wasn’t me that I’m just forgetting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded 352 units.  You forgot?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that wasn’t me though.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I know who was standing at the podium.

Mr. John Klarl stated 1) do you want us to prepare a neg. dec.? 2) A memo to the Town Board just to let them know where we are now?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the issue will be at the end of the next public hearing which I think it might be logical to assume won’t be much different than this one.  There won’t be dozens of people.  So, you’ll be faced with what do you do with it at the end of next meeting?  One avenue would be to have a draft neg. dec. -- it’s some sort of draft recommendation to go back to the Town Board which you don’t have to adopt but at least there would be something there if you chose to do it.

Mr. John Bernard stated sounds good.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the applicant would agree procedurally with what Mr. Kehoe has said.

Mr. Robert Foley stated when you just mentioned the no one speaking and so forth, and maybe not at the next meeting, the notification went out as we addressed it in the minutes of the last meeting?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, I just counted I think there were 36 separate letters that went out up Baker Street to Lucs Lane and to residents on both sides of Lucs Lane but did not go all the way up to Cardozo or up higher.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but the Cortlandt Colony person was here.

Ms. Macpherson stated we didn’t receive written notification.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated not everyone in the development received – we did not go to every single house.

Mr. Robert Foley asked did it go to the home owner president of Cortlandt Colony or whoever if there is one?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and no one from Lucs Lane was here and then the Helena High Street on the same side as Mr. Dimitri’s property, were they notified?  It’s in the minutes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated all adjacent and across the street property owners and going up Baker to Lucs Lane.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but not up Route 6 on the southbound side?  I had asked that but never mind.  Last question, can we ask as a Board because this has been asked of me, the residents that are currently there, the good residents, what happens to them?  This is really a matter with the owner right?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I guess so.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and if they haven’t weighted in other than phone calls…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I received phone calls from two current residents with questions.

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s a property owner/tenant issue.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated people who live in those kinds of conditions I hate to say it, almost become used to the fact that their lives get shifted around depending on who wants to buy what and who wants to build what.  They just have to move on.  It isn’t something that this Board can actually deal with in these proceedings but that’s just an unfortunate fact of life for those kinds of tenants.  

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adjourn this public hearing to July 6th and I think we’re supposed to instruct staff to notify the Town that we’ve reached some sort of agreement.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that would be a good idea.  Everybody should know, including when you send out to Yorktown that we’re about to wrap this up.

Mr. Peter Daly continued and also prep a draft negative declaration…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and a draft recommendation Resolution to the Town Board.

Mr. Peter Daly stated that too.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated to re-emphasize on the question that staff makes sure that the Town Board and Town Attorney know what we’re emphasizing about this new intersection and moving things along.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but correct me if I’m wrong, I was thinking that that type of a language would be in the draft recommendation that you would see the next meeting.  There could be some informal conversation but you actually put that language in that Resolution.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated in the Resolution.

Seconded.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all.  We’ll see you next month.



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS 
PB 1-11      a.
Application of Croton Realty & Development Inc. for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 26 lot major subdivision (25 building lots and 1 conservation parcel) of a 35.9 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Croton Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of Furnace Dock Road as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision Plan for Hanover Estates” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin III, P.E. dated February 14, 2011 (see prior PB 14-83).

Mr. David Steinmetz stated my understanding is that we’re removing this from this evening’s agenda.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to refer it back, yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back to the July meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked Mr. Cronin are you leaving a book?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded I have it in the car.  I can bring it back.

PB 4-08      b.
Application of Kevin Gragert for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal permits for a 2 lot major subdivision of an 11.59 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Ernst Road at the intersection with Fowler Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Gragert Subdivision” prepared by John Kalin, P.E. latest revision dated December 10, 2010.

Mr. John Kalin stated D.C. Engineering.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at this point, we’re thinking we would schedule a public hearing.  I’m sure you’re ready for that.

Mr. John Kalin stated I’m pretty much in agreement.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we schedule a public hearing for our July 6th meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. John Klarl stated July 6th is going to be a Wednesday.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated July 6th is a Wednesday.  It’s not our regular Tuesday meeting.

Mr. John Kalin stated we’ll note it in our calendar.  Thank you very much.

PB 12-10    c.
Application of Gas Land Holdings Corp, for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a gas station/convenience store located on a 12,783 sq. ft. parcel of property located at 2148 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Gas Land Cortlandt” prepared by the Chazen Companies latest revision dated April 20, 2011 and on a 2 page set of elevations prepared by Taconic Designs received on April 20, 2011.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I only let Cronin know because Cronin called that the machine was broken.  I did not purposely leave you out.
Ms. Margaret McManus stated with Chazen Companies as I represent Gas Land Holdings Corp.  We’re here for site plan approval for development of a gas station at 2148 Albany Post Road in Montrose.  We had a site visit on Sunday and after several comments I made some changes to the plan which brought the canopy farther away from Route 9 and actually shrunk the length.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there was a correction, 9A, I don’t know if you were aware of it.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded 9A yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and you also moved the pumps closer didn’t you?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the pumps are centered under the canopy so I moved them about – it’s only 2 ½ feet but it looks significantly different.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked does it provide enough room for the cars in the side of the road next to the pumps to bypass others?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded it does provide enough space for someone in stall 5 and 6, they could maneuver out and around either 6 or 8 and get to Trolley Road.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but they could also go by 5 and 6 to get to 8?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked Margaret what’s that distance between the concrete island?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded between the concrete island and the edge of pavement is 21 ½ feet.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked how about to the edge of the sidewalk?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the edge of sidewalk I don’t have that measurement but I did bring a scale.  

Mr. John Klarl asked Ed is that the line that’s recited as concrete sidewalk?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, to the edge of the concrete sidewalk.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked isn’t the finer line the edge of the concrete sidewalk?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the fine line is the edge of the…14, maybe 15 feet.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked I’m sorry, from where?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded from the island to the sidewalk but the sidewalk is flush with the pavement, there is not a curb.  The curb is only between Albany Post Road and the site so the sidewalk is actually level with the pavement.

Mr. John Klarl stated the drawing says “concrete curb” though.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes, that’s on the side of the property with – this line between Albany Post Road and the sidewalk is a curb.  There’s a six inch drop.  This between the property line and the sidewalk and the asphalt in the property and the sidewalk, the asphalt is actually flush.  It does not drop.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is that the 14 feet from the island pavement to the…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the 14 feet is from the island to the edge of the sidewalk.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the inside edge of the sidewalk of the curb?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the inside edge of the sidewalk.  If in order to get around 5 and 6 to get to 8 you would actually have to drive on the sidewalk. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked really?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded probably 14 feet is – well, you would maybe have to get your tires on it a little.  Nine feet for a parking space is standard so that only leaves you five more feet.  Fourteen feet is a wide driveway.  It would be tight for two cars.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded so they can’t drive by?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded well they can if they drive on the sidewalk.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t think we want to encourage that.

Mr. John Bernard stated I don’t think so.  I was thinking of a row of bollards between the sidewalk and the station.

Mr. Robert Foley asked isn’t this a well travelled sidewalk, especially with the high school in session?
Mr. Ed Vergano asked can’t you move the islands closer to the building Margaret?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded I can move the islands closer to the building.  I have now 24 feet between the sidewalk in front of the building and the canopy so if you go with the 24 feet and the 14 feet, that gives you 38 – I could split it.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated yes, where you have basically 20 foot on either side of the islands where cars would maneuver.  That would be like two 10 foot lanes.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated I could go to 18.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that marginally works.

Ms. Margaret McManus asked marginally better or marginally worse?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that marginally works.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated as long as they close the doors on the car.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is the existing building is being enhanced or a whole new building is being built?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the existing building is being demolished and a new structure is being built.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is there any way the new structure could be smaller width wise to give you that more room?

Ms. Margaret McManus  responded we are constrained.  This is a small parcel, it’s 12,000 square feet.  I can look into it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you sort of have a notch in the building.  Why can’t you just square it off where that notch is?  That gives you, looks like 8 feet.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded that also decreases the size of the building and makes it less viable for the client to make a living in the building.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in the front bump out or notch that Steve’s talking about?  How many feet is that?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the reason the notch is there is to comply with the setback on the side property line.  He would have preferred to not have the notch out.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s a nice looking building.

Mr. John Bernard asked you’re going to have a Zoning Variance for the back of the building anyway aren’t you?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes, it’s an existing non-conformance.  It already is at 11.7 feet and we’re proposing to for the new structure at 11.7 feet.

Mr. John Bernard asked have you had any conversations with Zoning Board?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded not with the Zoning Board as of yet.  We were waiting to get farther along in the Planning Board process. 

Mr. John Klarl stated obviously you’re making a Zoning Board of Appeals application at some.  Once again, we want to do coordinated review there, not where the lead agency stops the SEQRA process and the other one – so, we should coordinate that.  
Mr. John Bernard stated that would make sense and maybe at the same time you might get that notch filled in maybe.  You might as well approach them on it.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded okay.

Mr. Robert Foley stated a good example that you don’t want to be not so much the BP or Alltek on 6 and Locust which seems to be working but it’s very tight.  We approved that a few years ago.  You don’t want to be the Getty at Route 6 at the Bear Mountain Extension.  That’s an old one.

Ms. Margaret McManus  responded exactly.  An alternative would be to keep the square footage and maybe make the building longer but non-conforming to side yard setback and that would give us more room to move the pumps closer to the building.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think you need to take a look at maybe dealing with that building because you need to really make it safe for people to drive up, get out, pump gas, and cars to navigate reasonably well around them.  Everything is so tight there that somebody’s going to have an accident.  It’s just something waiting to happen.  Maybe you need to work with the building.

Mr. Robert Foley stated building there’s no way we could allow the vehicles to get around going on the sidewalk.  It’s just not going to work.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so you’ve got to figure out how to get something like 20 feet between the sidewalk and the pumps on both sides.  And, if it means – we’ll consider looking at the building with the setbacks.  Obviously, Zoning has to approve that but we could make a recommendation.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded definitely.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated this probably should be referred back to staff for further evaluation.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated the other issue that came up at the site visit was the curb cut to the south.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the one to the south I didn’t think was a problem for people.  Was it?  People can move to the south and go out into the road and turn right or left.  What’s the issue?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded whether or not you wanted to have this curb cut opened and also have Trolley Road functioning as an exit.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we probably should take a look at that after you’ve made some modifications so we know exactly what we’re looking at.  I think people wanted the one on Trolley Road to be open because that’s…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded oh yes, definitively the one on Trolley Road.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would say, if you’re going to work with this building and move things back let’s just take a look at it and then at that point we can decide whether we want it open or closed.  You still have work to do.  We can wait on that a little bit.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded I will change the plan and…

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we refer this back to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Margaret McManus responded thank you.



*
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NEW BUSINESS 
PB 5-11      a.
Application of Hollowbrook Golf Club for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a proposed 1,600 square foot pool, a 1,500 square foot two-story bridal suite and locker room building, a 288 sq. ft. snack bar and other landscaping and amenities located at the Hollowbrook Golf Club at 1600 Oregon Road as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Hollowbrook Golf Club Accessory Pool Area” prepared by Alvin Adler, P.E. latest revision dated May 24, 2011 (see prior PBs 16-99 and 38-06).

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn stated representing Hollowbrook Golf Course and this is Bill Sattler of Adler Engineering and we’re here to propose this plan of our pool and our snack shop, and our bridal suite.  We also had the putting green and the chipping green there.  It should be on your plan there. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked the putting green and the what?

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn responded putting green and the chipping green.
Mr. Robert Foley asked the chipping green is that on here?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated Ken, one more time point to the individual proposed facilities.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated with Adler Engineering.  I’ll quickly walk you through this.  On your site map, at the top, you’ll see at the center the existing clubhouse.  To the left of that is the proposed area where we’re going to put a gym, a main pool, kiddy pool, snack bar and jungle gym area for the children, fenced in.  Beneath the gym building will be storage for the golf course and their equipment, pool equipment, things of that nature.  The half story finished attic would be for the bridal party’s groom side, bridal side.  Down in the middle of the parking lot to your left you’ll see the re-located putting green and chipping green a little closer towards Oregon Road.  That would be on S1.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know a little bit about golf but that’s part of the putting green?  Steve, is it separate the chipping green?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded it’s a practice area.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but is it on here?

Mr. John Bernard stated it doesn’t show on here.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated that might be a revision that we had to make 14 copies of so then that’s my apologies.  In the meantime, Madame Chairperson…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just before we get going, just for full disclosure I just want to ask the applicant, I am a member of Hollowbrook and I want to know if you have any problem with me sitting in and rendering an opinion on your application.

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn responded absolutely not.  Chris do you want that one drawing?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded he certainly would need it.  

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn stated I gave it to you the last time I saw you there.

Mr. Robert Foley stated point to where it would be.  Right next to the putting green?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I can’t see it on that plan because it’s behind the driving range.  It’s back here and we don’t have it on this plan.  Why don’t you go show it to Bob.  We don’t have a copy of this.

Mr. Robert Foley stated your chip is further than your putt right Steve?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, but it’s chipping onto a putting green.

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn is showing the chipping green to Mr. Foley.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked where is this chipping thing?

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn is showing Ms. Loretta.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated in our first submission the driving range was drawn based on an original site map, not a survey.  This new revision to the site map S1 and revision noted in the title block was taken off an actual survey.  We realized that the way it was shown that people practice putting are in immediate danger of the people using the driving range and we wanted that corrected before we came before you tonight.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it is the usual practice of the Board with anything new to take a look at it on the first night and then refer it back to our people in the office and then we will take another look at this maybe next month.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I just want to point out that the applicant did submit to me a drawing that shows these revisions but I didn’t get it to you, partly because the drawings came in they were distributed to you – this is sort of an interim change but I’m going to – and I’ll talk to the applicant, I think we probably should get you all this revised one because the revised one is what I’ll do the review memo on.  So, you should have the revised one.  So, I’ll talk to you about getting some extra copies and then that would be distributed to you because this is the one that shows – I think he took it around and showed the putting green and chipping green and all of that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that would be a very good idea.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the applicant did discuss and we discussed it at the work session if you are so inclined to do anything faster on this than any other applications.  The normal procedure would be the review memo, the review memo would be discussed in July, and I told the applicant “you can possibly schedule a site inspection for the Sunday before the August meeting.”  He was talking about a site inspection this month but I think you could be back in July to discuss the review memo, site inspection prior to the August meeting maybe if it works out.

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn responded we were looking at June 26th if possible because 4th of July fell in there so we would lose that whole time.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the only issue with that is if you do a site inspection by June 26th the Planning Board as a group with you and with staff probably will not have discussed the review memo at all, but that’s the Board’s call.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated the review memo for the putting green has already been done Chris so it would only be a matter of producing more copies which you could have as early as tomorrow.  The other items; the buildings and swimming pool remain unchanged so we could still discuss them and make progress.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it might Ken because the 26th would be after the next work session.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated maybe not though.

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn stated the drawings that you have everything with the pool and everything there that’s unchanged.

Mr. Robert Foley asked next work session is June 30th?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the other way, if the Board was inclined, would be to do the site inspection and then have the public hearing in August.  That’s the other way to do it.  That would be your call but if you wanted to do it that way it would simply be a normal refer back not schedule a site inspection and then schedule the site inspection after the review memo comes back at the July meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated schedule the site inspection for early August.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated for the Sunday before, I think it may be August 5th but then if the Board was inclined to accelerate then you would schedule a site inspection and a public hearing for that August meeting and then conceivably it could be wrapped up in September. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess we could probably move in that direction as long as the review memo didn’t indicate any significant problems.  If it was pretty straightforward maybe we could do that.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s why I’m suggesting not to schedule the site inspection until the review memo is done and gets back to you and I don’t think that costs anyone any time.  You combine the two events at the August meeting you can still save a month.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated if you need any additional copies Chris we have three.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll definitely need new copies but the process would be, then I will review these depending on the comments you may have to revise the drawing again.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated you have three so Ken could locally produce you the 14 copies and you could have them tomorrow.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so the likelier would be a site inspection on July 31st after the review memo.  Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded but the only way that works is if you want to accelerate it schedule a public hearing for August as well or the other way to do it is to schedule the public hearing and the Resolution in September. 

Mr. Bill Sattler stated just so the Board understands the reason why we’re requesting acceleration is to keep the golf course operable for as long as possible just to allow enough time before winter sets in to complete the project.  We can only ask for your help.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I understand and I think we all are somewhat sympathetic to your situation.  I just don’t want the golf course to appear regularly asking for accelerated reviews.  The last one was accelerated, this one’s accelerated.  We want timely submission.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated this is probably a pretty substantial project undertaking with two buildings and two pools and a gated enclosure and so there’s a very small window of opportunity between the end of the golfing season and the onset of winter.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I am totally aware of that and I asked if you guys had a committee, somebody’s planning this stuff, trying to get it in sufficient time so that the Board and the office, our staff have time to do things where we’re not always looking and hurrying it up.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated Ken has diligently been nagging us to get this done for you.  We’ve been trying hard to…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked have you talked to Architectural Advisory Committee yet?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded no we have not.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked have we hooked them in yet?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I have the elevations.  Art Clements has been on vacation.  Things have been forwarded to them.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated they’re an important component to this review process.

Mr. Bill Sattler  stated we have the elevation drawings that we are ready to propose to you.  We just don’t have them tonight, a sample board of some of the materials used in the construction of the buildings.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that should go to the Architectural Advisory Committee for their input.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked what do you need from the Health Department?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded they will be actively involved in the approval of the pool.  Regardless of what this Board says we still cannot construct the pool until Westchester County Department of Health approves our submission to them.  And, then they also have to approve the snack bar and the gym facilities as far as the showers and the bathrooms and then they will, based on the number of facilities, give an occupancy maximum to the building and that’s all by Westchester County Permit.

Mr. John Bernard asked it’s already been submitted to them?

Mr. Bill Sattler stated we haven’t submitted anything until we get some feedback from the Town here and from your Board as to if this looks like a project that you’d be interested in then we will start with the design of the pool and make that submission.  We expect to have that approval before we have approval here. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that could take months with the Health Department.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded yes, but we’ve done many, many, many pools with them.  I don’t think it would be too bad of a process when we know what they want.  We’ve probably done 50, 60 pools with that office.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe what we’ll do is we will certainly refer it back and we’ll ask for – you’re going to get the review memo to us for our July package and then based on that we’ll make a determination to do the public hearing.  We’ll announce it for August.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we refer back to staff for a review memo.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adjourn.
So moved.

Next Meeting: WEDNESDAY JULY 6, 2011

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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